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A. U.S. BANKRUPTCY COURT, WBNY:
From Dr. Cordero’s application of September 27, 2002, for a review of
Trustee Gordon’s personal conduct and liquidation of storage company
Premier, which had abandoned his property at Pfuntner’s warehouse
to Pfuntner’s admin. & storage fee recouping suit v. the Tr., Dr. Cordero, et al.,
to Judge Ninfo’s summary dismissal of Dr. Cordero’s cross-claims against 

the Trustee despite genuine issues of material facts
1. Letter of September 23, 2002, of Kenneth Gordon, Esq., Chapter 7 Trustee for the liquidation of moving and storage company Premier Van Lines, Inc., to Dr. Richard Cordero with copy to U.S. Bankruptcy Judge John C. Ninfo, II, WBNY, and others, enjoining him from contacting his office concerning Dr. Cordero’s search for his property in storage with Premier
A:1

2. Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 27, 2002, to Trustee Gordon requesting that he a) apologize for his unjustified and unprofessional September 23 letter to him, b) assure him that the lines of communication between them will be opened, and c) send him copies of the letters concerning Premier and his property that the Trustee sent to other parties
A:2

3. Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 27, 2002, to Judge Ninfo requesting a review of Trustee Gordon’s performance and fitness to continue serving as trustee
A:7
4. Dr. Cordero’s Statement of Facts and Application for a Determination of September 27, 2002, by Judge Ninfo of whether Trustee Gordon, as trustee in bankruptcy with fiduciary duties to all the parties, failed in his duty and is not fit to continue as trustee of Premier Van Lines
A:8

a.
Exhibits

a. 1)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 27, 2002, to Trustee Gordon requesting an apology, open communication between them, and copies of letters sent to other parties
A:11
b. 2)
Trustee Gordon’s letter of September 23, 2002, to Dr. Cordero enjoining him from contacting his office
A:13
c. 3)
Letter of September 19, 2002, of David MacKnight, Esq., attorney for Warehouser James Pfuntner, plaintiff in the Adversary Proceeding Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230, WBNY, to Dr. Cordero stating that he will soon be receiving Mr. Pfuntner’s summons and complaint
A:14

d. 4)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of August 26, 2002, to Att. MacKnight requesting information about “Pyramid” storage containers and the whereabouts of his property
A:15

e. 5)
Trustee Gordon’s letter of June 10, 2002, to Dr. Cordero with copy of his April 16 letter to Warehouser David Dworkin, manager/owner of the Jefferson Henrietta Associates’ warehouse where Premier rented space to store the storage containers holding the property of its clients
A:16

f. 6)
Trustee Gordon’s letter of April 16, 2002, to David Dworkin stating that M&T Bank has a blanket lien on Premier’s assets in his warehouse and that the Trustee will not rent or control them
A:17
g. 7)
Letter of May 30, 2002, of Raymond Stilwell, Esq., attorney for Owner David Palmer and Premier Van Lines, Inc., his bankrupt moving and storage company and debtor in the Chapter 7 bankruptcy case In re Premier Van Lines, no. 01-20692, WBNY, to Dr. Cordero stating that Premier ceased operations at the end of 2001
A:18

5. Cover sheet of September 26, 2002, for the Adversary proceeding Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230, WBNY, where Plaintiff Pfuntner through Attorney MacKnight claims from the defendants $20,000 in interpleader
A:18a

6. Trustee Gordon’s letter of October 1, 2002, to Judge Ninfo and others requesting that the Judge not take any action on Dr. Cordero’s September 27 application for a review of the Trustee’s performance and fitness to serve as Premier’s trustee
A:19
7. James Pfuntner’s Summons of October 3, 2002, in Adversary Proceeding Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon, et al., no. 02-2230 (received on or around October 20, 2002; see pages A:32, 50, and 52)
A:21
a.
“Interpleader Complaint to Determine Rights in Property of the Debtor and in Property in the Debtor’s Possession, to Grant Plaintiff and Compel the Trustee to pay Administrative Expenses or Otherwise Determine the Liability of Those Found to Hold an Interest in the Debtor’s Property or Property in Possession of the Debtor for the Use and Occupancy of the Plaintiff’s Real Property, and to Vacate the Automatic Stay of Actions”
A:22

8. Judge Ninfo’s letter of October 8, 2002, to Dr. Cordero referring Dr. Cordero’s September 27 Application to Assistant U.S. Trustee Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt, Esq., for “thorough inquiry”
A:29

9. Letter of October 8, 2002, of Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt, who sits in the same small federal building in Rochester, NY, as the Bankruptcy and the District Courts as well as the U.S. Attorney’s Office and the FBI Bureau, to Dr. Cordero stating that she contacted Trustee Gordon for information and after she receives and reviews it, she will contact Dr. Cordero, whose ‘active involvement is encouraged to promote efficient and appropriate case administration’
A:30

10. Trustee Gordon’s Answer of October 9, 2002, in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., stating that all Premier’s assets were abandoned and that none is available to pay any claims
A:31

11. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 14, 2002, to Judge Ninfo sending him a copy of his rejoinder to Trustee Gordon’s October 1 allegations; and informing him that he has not yet been served with either the summons or the complaint in Pfuntner
A:32
a.
Table of Exhibits

h. 1)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of August 26, 2002, to Att. MacKnight requesting information about “Pyramid” storage containers and the whereabouts of his property
A:33
i. 2)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 7, 2002, to Att. MacKnight stating that despite the latter’s September 19 letter, Dr. Cordero has not yet received from either him or Mr. Pfuntner any information concerning his property stored by Premier Van Lines in Mr. Pfuntner’s warehouse at 2140 Sackett Road in Avon, NY.
A:34

j. 3)
Att. MacKnight’s letter of September 19, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that he will soon be receiving Mr. Pfuntner’s summons and complaint
97 A:35
k. 4)
Trustee Gordon’s Answer of October 9, 2002, in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., stating that all Premier’s assets were abandoned and that none is available to pay any claims
A:36
12. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 14, 2002, to Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt submitting his rejoinder to Trustee Gordon’s October 1 allegations
A:37

13. Dr. Cordero’s Rejoinder and Application for a Determination of October 14, 2002, to Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt showing that Trustee Gordon resorted in his October 1 letter to defamatory and false statements about Dr. Cordero to detract from his credibility and lend support to the Trustee’s request that Judge Ninfo not take any action on Dr. Cordero’s September 27 application for a review of his performance and fitness to serve as Premier’s trustee
A:38

I. Trustee Gordon’s “significant efforts” as Premier’s trustee
A:38

a.
The facts of Trustee Gordon’s performance
A:39

b.
Questions to assess Trustee Gordon’s “significant efforts”
A:40

II. Whether the Trustee’s statements to Court & U.S. Trustee are true
A:41

III. The understanding of Trustee Gordon’s role
A:43
IV. Request for review of Trustee Gordon’s performance and fitness
A:43
V. Table of Exhibits
A:44
d.
Letter of July 30, 2002, of Christopher Carter -owner of Champion Moving & Storage, Inc., which bought storage containers of Bankrupt Premier Van Lines sold by Lienholder M&T Bank- to Dr. Cordero stating that his stored property is in a warehouse in Avon, NY
A:45

l. e.
Christopher Carter’s letter of July 30, 2002, to Vince Pusateri, Vice President of M&T Bank, general lienholder against Bankrupt Borrower Premier Van Lines, Inc., stating that his company did not receive containers with property of Dr. Cordero among the containers bought from M&T Bank
A:46

1) Bill of sale from M&T Bank for Mr. Carter to sign in order to acknowledge receipt of containers bought from M&T, which liquidated its lien on them by selling the containers after Premier had bought them with an M&T loan and subsequently went bankrupt
A:47
2) List of former Premier clients whose property was allegedly in storage containers sold by M&T Bank to Champion’s Mr. Carter, who received no containers with Dr. Cordero’s name so he did not sign the acknowledgment
A:48

3) Premier Van Lines’ invoice of September 26, 2000, for storage of Dr. Cordero’s property
A:49

14. James Pfuntner’s Summons of October 3, 2002, in Adversary Proceeding Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon, et al., no. 02-2230 (received on or around October 20, 2002; see pages A:32, 50, and 52)
A:21

m. a.
“Interpleader Complaint to Determine Rights in Property of the Debtor and in Property in the Debtor’s Possession, to Grant Plaintiff and Compel the Trustee to pay Administrative Expenses or Otherwise Determine the Liability of Those Found to Hold an Interest in the Debtor’s Property or Property in Possession of the Debtor for the Use and Occupancy of the Plaintiff’s Real Property, and to Vacate the Automatic Stay of Actions”
A:22

15. Dr. Cordero’s voluntary waiver of service of summons and petition of October 23, 2002, to the Bankruptcy Court for Clarification in Pfuntner
A:50
a.
Exhibit

n. 1)
Att. MacKnight’s letter of October 16, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that he should anticipate receiving a copy of Mr. Pfuntner’s summons and complaint in the near future
A:52

16. Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt’s letter of October 22, 2002, to Dr. Cordero, stating her assessment of Trustee Gordon’s performance, with copy to Judge Ninfo and Trustee Gordon
A:53

17. Dr. Cordero’s Answer and Counterclaim of November 1, 2002, in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-0223, WBNY
A:56

a.
Answer
A:56

b.
Statement of Counterclaims
A:60

c.
Relief
A:61

d.
Table of Exhibits
A:62
2)
Att. Beyma’s letter of August 15, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating, among other things, that “I understand that David DeLano [the M&T Assistant Vice President in charge of liquidating M&T’s lien on Premier’s cabinets, i.e. storage containers] has informed you that your two “Pyramid” storage cabinets are located at 2140 Sackett Road, Avon, New York. The owner of the property is James Pfuntner and he is represented by David MacKnight (585-454-5650)”
A:63

6)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 17, 2002, to Plaintiff Pfuntner stating that he has not yet received from them the requested information about the Pyramid containers holding his property and stored in Mr. Pfuntner’s warehouse in Avon, NY, and requesting them to provide such information
A:65
18. Att. Beyma’s letter of November 6, 2002, to Att. MacKnight accompanying:
A:66

o. a.
M&T Bank’s answer of November 6, 2002, to the claims in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230
A:67

19. Att. MacKnight’s letter of November 11, 2002, to the parties accompanying:
A:68

a.
Plaintiff Warehouser James Pfuntner’s answer of November 8, 2002, to Dr. Cordero’s counterclaim in Pfuntner
A:69

20. Third party summons issued by Bankruptcy Clerk Paul R. Warren, and signed by Deputy Clerk Karen S. Tacy on November 19, 2002, and accompanying Dr. Cordero’s amended answer of November 21, 2002, with cross- and third-party claims in Pfuntner, no. 02-0223, WBNY
A:69b
21. Dr. Cordero’s Amended Answer of November 21, 2002, in Pfuntner with cross-claims against M&T Bank and Trustee Gordon, and third-party claims against M&T Assistant Vice President DeLano, Warehouser Dworkin, Jefferson Henrietta Associates, and Premier Owner David Palmer
A:70

  I. Statement of Facts
A:72

 II. Statement of Claims
A:78

A.
David Palmer
A:78

B.
David Dworkin
A:79

C.
Jefferson Henrietta Associates
A:81

D.
David Delano
A:82

E.
M&T Bank
A:83

F.
Trustee Kenneth Gordon
A:83

III. Statement of Relief
A:87

A.
All cross-defendants and third-party defendants
A:87

B.
David Palmer, David Dworkin, and Jefferson Henrietta Associates
A:88

C.
Trustee Kenneth Gordon
A:88

IV. Table of Exhibits
A:89
1) Letter of David Dworkin, owner/manager of the warehouse of Jefferson Henrietta Associates, of March 1, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that from then on he should make his monthly storage payments to Jefferson Henrietta Associates, not to Premier
A:91
2) Jefferson Henrietta Associates’ warehouse bill of March 7, 2002, to Dr. Cordero for past storage and insurance
A:92

3) Manager Dworkin’s letter of April 25, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that his property has not been removed from the Jefferson Henrietta warehouse since it took possession of the premises, but it is no longer insured
A:93

7) Letter of Michael Beyma, Esq., attorney for M&T Bank, of August 28, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that “M&T Bank has not sold your cabinets to Champion or any other party. M&T Bank sold only Pyramid cabinets which were located in Rochester”
355A:94

22. Dr. Cordero’s letter of November 21, 2002, to Bankruptcy Clerk Paul Warren and Case Administrator Karen Tacy certifying service of his amended answer with cross- and third-party claims in Pfuntner
A:95
23. Dr. Cordero’s letters of November 21, 2002, to Att. Beyma with the amended answer containing:

p. a.
cross-claims against M&T Bank
A:97

q. b.
third-party claims against M&T Bank Assistant Vice President David DeLano
A:98

24. Dr. Cordero’s letter of November 21, 2002, to M&T Bank Assistant Vice President David DeLano with the amended answer containing third-party claims against him
A:99

25. Att Beyma’s letter of December 16, 2002, to the parties accompanying:
A:100
a.
Att Beyma’s answer of December 16, 2002, for M&T Bank and Mr. DeLano to Dr. Cordero’s claims
A:100-a
26. Dr. Cordero’s letter of November 25, 2002, to Carolyn S. Schwartz, United States Trustee for Region 2, concerning Trustee Schmitt’s perfunctory handling of his application for a review of Trustee Gordon’s performance and fitness to serve as trustee of Premier
A:101
27. Dr. Cordero’s Appeal of November 25, 2002, from a Supervisory Opinion of Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt to U.S. Trustee Schwartz, with copy to Judge Ninfo and Trustee Gordon.
A:102





























E. Exhibits
r. 1)
Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt’s letter of October 22, 2002, to Dr. Cordero, with copy to Judge Ninfo and Trustee Gordon
53A:123
s. 2)
Trustee Schmitt’s letter of October 8, 2002, to Dr. Cordero
30 A:126
t. 3)
Judge Ninfo’s letter of October 8, 2002, to Dr. Cordero
29A:127
u. 4)
Trustee Gordon’s letter of October 1, 2002, to Judge Ninfo
19A:128
v. 5)
Trustee Gordon’s letter of September 23, 2002, to Dr. Cordero
13A:130
28. Letter of David MacKnight, Esq., attorney for Plaintiff and Warehouser James Pfuntner, of December 5, 2002, to Judge Ninfo stating that in light of Dr. Cordero’s latest pleadings, there is the need to obtain information from Trustee Gordon, Dr. Cordero, M&T Bank, and Champion lest the pretrial conference fail to advance matters
A:131

29. Trustee Gordon’s notice of December 5, 2002, of motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s cross-claim against the Trustee in Pfuntner
A:133

30. Trustee Gordon’s affirmation of December 5, 2002, in support of his motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s cross-claim against him
A:135

Defamation Claim
A:137

Negligence and Recklessness Claims
A:138

31. Dr. Cordero’s letter of December 10, 2002, to Bankruptcy Clerk Paul Warren filing his memorandum in opposition to Trustee Gordon’s dismissal motion and requesting that Clerk Warren transmit it to Judge Ninfo for the latter to rule on Dr. Cordero’s motion that the dismissal hearing be deferred until trial
A:141

32. Dr. Cordero’s letter of December 10, 2002, to Judge Ninfo requesting that the Judge let him know in advance whether he will grant Dr. Cordero’s request that Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss be deferred until trial so that discovery can be undertaken
A:142
33. Dr. Cordero’s memorandum of December 10, 2002, in opposition to Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s cross-claims against him
A:143

VI. Hardship and lack of urgency
A:144
VII. Non-dispositive legal grounds and need for discovery
A:145

A.
The Claim of Defamation
A:145

B.
The Claim of Recklessness or Negligence
A:148
VIII. Order Sought
A:149
34. Judge Ninfo’s order entered on December 30, 2002, granting Trustee’s Gordon motion and dismissing Dr. Cordero’s cross-claims against him (cf. C:993)
A:151
B. IN DISTRICT COURT, WDNY: 
From Dr. Cordero’s notice of January 9, 2003, of appeal to Trustee Gordon’s

motion to dismiss it as untimely filed though timely mailed

to    WDNY Judge Larimer’s dismissal of his notice and denial of

his application for judgment v. defaulted Premier Owner Palmer
  and the legally unsupported requirement by Judge Ninfo and Larimer 

that Dr. Cordero inspect his property and prove that its loss was

caused by Palmer, who is thus given a chance to escape

liability though a defrauder of storage & insurance fees Why?
1. Trustee Gordon’s motion in District Court to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s notice of appeal as untimely filed, although he had timely mailed it 
35. Dr. Cordero’s notice of appeal of January 9, 2003, to District Court from Bankruptcy Judge Ninfo’s dismissal of his cross-claims against Trustee Gordon in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., 02-2230, WBNY
A:153

36. Dr. Cordero’s statement of January 9, 2003, of election of District Court to hear the appeal
A:155
37. Trustee Gordon’s statement of January 15, 2003, in District Court in support of his motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s appeal due to the untimeliness of the notice of appeal
A:156

38. Dr. Cordero’s designation of January 23, 2003, of items in the record and statement of issues on appeal
A:183

IX. Designation of Items
A:183

X. Issues on Appeal
A:188
XI. Outline of the Argument
A:189
A.
Appellee Gordon’s Defamatory and False Statements
A:189
B.
Appellee Gordon’s Reckless and Negligent Performance
A:192
39. Dr. Cordero’s brief of February 12, 2003, in District Court opposing Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss the timely mailed but allegedly untimely filed notice of appeal
A:158

XII. Statement of facts
A:160
XIII. Consistent & coherent construction of rules on notice of appeal
A:164

XIV. Equities of curing harmless error to preserve substantial right and prevent prejudice
A:175
XV. Order sought
A:180
XVI. Table of Exhibits
A:181
40. Trustee Gordon’s letter of February 25, 2003, to U.S. District Judge David G. Larimer, submitting to the District Court his prior February 5 brief (A:234 below) to the Bankruptcy Court in opposition to Dr. Cordero’s motion to extend time to file notice of appeal
A:199

41. District Judge Larimer’s decision and order of March 12, 2003, in Cordero v. Trustee Gordon, no. 03cv6021L, granting Trustee Gor-don’s motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s notice of appeal as untimely
A:200

Dr. Cordero’s brief of March 20, 2003, in support of his motion in District Court for rehearing of the grant of Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss the notice of appeal
A:205

42. Trustee Gordon’s letter of March 24, 2003, to District Judge Larimer stating his reliance on his previous submission [A:234 below] regarding Dr. Cordero’s rehearing motion
A:210

43. District Judge Larimer’s order of March 27, 2003, in Cordero v. Trustee Gordon, no. 03-CV-6021L, denying in all respects but with​out stating any reason at all Dr. Cordero’s motion for rehearing of the grant of Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss the notice of appeal
A:211
2. Dr. Cordero’s motion in Bankruptcy Court to extend time to file his notice of appeal and its denial by Judge Ninfo
44. Dr. Cordero’s notice of motion and affirmation in its support of January 27, 2003, in Bankruptcy Court to extend time to file notice of appeal from Judge Ninfo’s dismissal of his cross-claims against Trustee Gordon
A:212
A. Notice to be filed with Bankruptcy, not District, court clerk
A:215

B. No rush for filing either justified or possible
A:219
C. Curing harmless error to preserve substantial right of appeal
A:220
D. General mailbox vs. exceptional receipt-based filing rule
A:221
E. Appellee Gordon’ seeks with Dirty Hands promptness
A:222
F. Order sought
A:224
G.
Table of Exhibits
A:224
45. Trustee Gordon’s memorandum of law of February 5, 2003, in Bankruptcy Court opposing Dr. Cordero’s motion to extend time for appeal
A:234

46. Judge Ninfo’s order of February 18, 2003, denying Dr. Cordero’s motion to extend time to file notice of appeal
A:240
47. Dr. Cordero’s date-amended notice of March 6, 2003, of motion in Bankruptcy Court and affirmation in its support of February 26, 2003, for relief from Judge Ninfo’s order denying his motion to extend time to file notice of appeal from the Judge’s dismissal of his cross-claims against Trustee Gordon
A:242
G. The issue of law concerning the determination of timeliness
A:247
H. The issue of fact establishing the timely filing of the motion
A:249

I. Preference for deciding cases on merits rather than technicality
A:250

J. Pro se parties are afforded extra leeway to meet procedural rules
A:251

K. Missing filing deadline is no jurisdictional bar to granting relief
A:252

L. Filing flexibility and benefit of doubts for movant for relief
A:253
M. Relief requested
A:255
N. Table of Exhibits
A:255
48. Trustee Gordon’s letter of March 3, 2003, to Judge Ninfo referring the Court to his prior submission [of February 5, 2003; A:234 above] as his brief to oppose Dr. Cordero’s February 26 motion for relief from the denial of the motion to extend time to file notice of appeal
A:257

49. Trustee Gordon’s letter of April 2, 2003, to Judge Ninfo with proposed order denying Dr. Cordero’s February 26 motion for relief from the Judge’s February 18 denial of his January 27 motion to extend time to file notice of appeal
A:258
50. Judge Ninfo’s order of April 4, 2003, denying Dr. Cordero’s motion for relief from the order denying the motion to extend time to file notice of appeal
A:259
Transcript of the hearing in Bankruptcy Court on December 18, 2002, of Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s cross-claims

51. Dr. Cordero’s letter of January 23, 2003, to Bankruptcy Court Reporter Mary Dianetti confirming his request for the transcript of the hearing on December 18, 2002, of Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s cross-claims against him and its grant by Judge Ninfo
A:261

52. Dr. Cordero’s note of March 30, 2003, stating his receipt on March 28 of the transcript prepared by Reporter Dianetti, over two and a half months after its initial request
A:262

53. Reporter’s Dianetti’s transcript of the hearing before Judge Ninfo on December 18, 2002, of Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss Dr. Cordero’s cross-claims against him in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al.
A:263

54. Dr. Cordero’s letter of March 30, 2003, to Mary Dianetti requesting an explanation of the circumstances of the preparation and handling of the transcript
A:283
55. Mary Dianetti’s letter of April 11, 2003, to Dr. Cordero concerning her late transcript of the hearing on December 18, 2002, of Trustee Gordon’s motion to dismiss (cf. ToEC:46§I; C:1280§C)
A:286
3. Application for default judgment against Premier Owner David Palmer
56. Letter of May 30, 2002, of Raymond Stilwell, Esq., attorney for David Palmer, owner of Premier Van Lines, Inc., a bankrupt moving and storage company, to Dr. Cordero stating that Premier ceased operations at the end of 2001
A:18

57. Dr. Cordero’s cross- and third-party claims of November 21, 2002
A:70

XVII. Statement of Claims
A:78

A. David Palmer 
A:78

XVIII. Statement of Relief Sought
A:87

A. All cross-defendants and third-party defendants
A:87

B. David Palmer, et al.
A:88

XIX. Table of Exhibits
A:89
58. Dr. Cordero’s application of December 26, 2002, for entry of default judgment against David Palmer, Premier’s owner
A:290

w. a.
Application for entry of default
A:290

x. b.
Dr. Cordero’s affidavit of Palmer’s non-military service
A:291

y. c.
Proposed order for the Bankruptcy Court to transmit its record to the District Court for entry of default judgment
A:292

z. d.
Dr. Cordero’s affidavit of amount due
A:294

aa. e.
Proposed order of entry of default judgment by District Court
A:295
59. Dr. Cordero’s letter of January 30, 2003, to Judge Ninfo inquiring why his December 26 application for default judgment against David Palmer has not been transmitted to the District Court, requesting that Judge Ninfo order that it be transmitted, and otherwise, explain why he will not do so
A:302

60. Clerk of the U.S. Bankruptcy Court Paul A. Warren’s certificate of February 4, 2003, of default of David Palmer
A:303

61. Judge Ninfo’s order of February 4, 2003, transmitting to the District Court the record concerning Dr. Cordero’s application for default judgment against David Palmer
A:304

ab. a.
Judge Ninfo’s attachment to his recommendation of February 4, 2003, to the District Court that it not enter default judgment against David Palmer
A:306
ac. b.
Dr. Cordero’s letter of January 30, 2003, to Judge Ninfo
A:308
62. Att. Stilwell’s letter of February 11, 2003, to Judge Ninfo concerning his relation to Premier Van Lines; Mr. Palmer; his receipt of service for them; and the inquiries about his availability to attend the inspection of Dr. Cordero’s property at the Avon warehouse
A:309
63. Dr. Cordero’s letter of March 2, 2203, to District Judge Larimer stating that David Palmer was given proper warning of default judgment and the Bankruptcy Clerk defaulted him so that Judge Ninfo lacks any support in law to recommend that default judgment be denied and that an inspection of the property at the warehouse be required
A:311
64. Dr. Cordero’s notice of motion in District Court and brief in its support of March 2, 2003, to enter default judgment against David Palmer and withdraw proceeding to an unbiased court
A:312
a.
Brief
A:314

i.
Table of Contents
A:315

XX. Statement of Facts
A:315
XXI. Conditions for entry of default judgment
A:317

XXII. Lack of basis in fact for the recommendation
A:318

A.
The facts point to the loss of my property 
A:318

B.
Recommendation reveals unwarranted dismissal of my claim
A:320
C.
Default judgment application is not premature since failure to appear is complete
A:322

XXIII. No grounds in law for requiring applicant to demonstrate anything
A:325

A.
Pleadings only require to state a claim and demand judgment
A:326
B.
Rule 55 only requires showing Defendant’s failure to plead 
A:326

1)
The clerk’s legal obligation to enter default and judgment
A:326

2)
The court’s legal obligation “in all other cases”
A:328
C.
No notice and opportunity to object afforded under 28 U.S.C. §157
A:329
1)
Unequal application of the notion of timeliness 
A:330
XXIV. Implications that the recommendation has for the parties
A:331
XXV. Order sought
A:331

XXVI. Table of Exhibits
A:332
65. Dr. Cordero’s letter of March 5, 2003, to Bankruptcy Clerk Paul Warren inquiring about his failure to default David Palmer upon receiving Dr. Cordero’s application therefor of December 26, 2002
A:334

66. Bankruptcy Clerk Warren’s letter of March 12, 2003, to Dr. Cordero explaining how default was entered against Mr. Palmer
A:337
67. District Judge Larimer’s order of March 11, 2003, in Cordero v. Palmer, no. 03mbk6001L, accepting Judge Ninfo’s recommendation not to enter default judgment against David Palmer and requiring the conduct of an inquest into damages before default judgment is appropriate
A:339

68. District Clerk Rodney Early’s notice of March 12, 2003, of entry of Judge Larimer’s March 11 order sent to Dr. Cordero, David Palmer, and his attorney, Raymond Stilwell, Esq.
A:341
69. Dr. Cordero’s brief of March 19, 2003, in support of his motion in District Court for rehearing concerning the implied denial by Judge Larimer of his motion to enter default judgment against Mr. Palmer and withdraw the Pfuntner adversary proceeding from Bankruptcy Court to the District Court
A:342
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70. District Judge Larimer’s order of March 27, 2003, in Cordero v. Palmer, no. 03-MBK-6001L, denying in all respects but without stating any reasons the motion for rehearing of his March 11 decision denying entry of default judgment against David Palmer
A:350

71. District Clerk Early’s notice of March 27, 2003, of entry of Judge Larimer’s March 27 order sent to Dr. Cordero, David Palmer, and the Bankruptcy Court .
A:351
72. Att. Michael Beyma’s letter of August 1, 2002, to Dr. Cordero [see A:353-15 below]
352A:352
4. Dr. Cordero’s search of his property and NYC-Rochester trip to inspect it at Mr. Pfuntner’s warehouse, where Premier Owner Palmer had abandoned it

a. Dr. Cordero’s efforts to find his property before Pfuntner in 2002
73. Letter of March 1, 2002, of David Dworkin, owner/manager of the Jefferson Henrietta Associates’ warehouse where Premier Van Lines rented space to store the storage containers holding the property of Premier’s clients, to Dr. Cordero stating that from then he should make his monthly storage payments to Jefferson Henrietta Associates, not to Premier
91A:353-1
74. Jefferson Henrietta Associates’ warehouse bill of March 7, 2002, to Dr. Cordero for past storage and insurance
92A:353-2
75. Trustee Gordon’s letter of April 16, 2002, to David Dworkin stating that M&T Bank has a blanket lien on Premier’s assets in his warehouse and that the Trustee will not rent or control them
1745 A: 353-3
76. Manager Dworkin’s letter of April 25, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that his property has not been removed from the Jefferson Henrietta warehouse since it took possession of the premises, but it is no longer insured
93A:353-4
77. Letter of May 30, 2002, of Raymond Stilwell, Esq., attorney for Owner David Palmer and Premier Van Lines, Inc., his bankrupt moving and storage company and debtor in the Chapter 7 bankruptcy case In re Premier Van Lines, no. 01-20692, WBNY, to Dr. Cordero stating that Premier ceased operations at the end of 2001
18A:353-5
78. Dr. Cordero’s letter of May 30, 2002, to Trustee Gordon stating that he has not yet received the information concerning his property and Bankrupt Premier that the Trustee agreed to send him when they spoke on the phone two weeks earlier
A:353-7
79. Trustee Gordon’s letter of June 10, 2002, to Dr. Cordero providing him a copy of his April 16 letter to Warehouser David Dworkin, manager/owner of the Jefferson Henrietta Associates’ warehouse where Premier rented space to store the storage containers holding the property of its clients
1647 A:353-8
80. Letter of July 30, 2002, of Christopher Carter -owner of Champion Moving & Storage, Inc., which bought storage containers of Bankrupt Premier Van Lines sold by Lienholder M&T Bank- to Dr. Cordero stating that his stored property is in a warehouse in Avon, NY
45A:353-9
81. Christopher Carter’s letter of July 30, 2002, to Vince Pusateri, Vice President of M&T Bank, general lienholder against Bankrupt Borrower Premier Van Lines, Inc., stating that his company did not receive containers with property of Dr. Cordero among the containers bought from M&T Bank
46A:353-10
ad. a.
Bill of sale from M&T Bank for Mr. Carter to sign in order to acknowledge receipt of containers bought from M&T, which liquidated its lien on them by selling the containers after Premier had bought them with an M&T loan and subsequently went bankrupt
47A:353-11
ae. b.
List of former Premier clients whose property was allegedly in storage containers sold by M&T Bank to Champion’s Mr. Carter, who received no containers with Dr. Cordero’s name so he did not sign the acknowledgment
48A:353-12
af. c.
Premier Van Lines’ invoice of September 26, 2000, for storage of Dr. Cordero’s property
49A:353-13
Commercial Lease of April 4, 2000, between James Pfuntner and Premier Van Lines, Inc.
82. Letter of August 1, 2002, of Michael Beyma, Esq., attorney for Defendant M&T Bank and Third-party defendant David DeLano, the M&T Assistant Vice President in charge of liquidating M&T’s lien on Premier’s storage containers, to Dr. Cordero stating that M&T Bank did not sell storage containers holding his property, which they believe are in a warehouse in Avon, NY, owned by James Pfuntner, who is represented by Att. David MacKnight
352A:353-15
83. Att. Beyma’s letter of August 15, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating, among other things, that “I understand that David DeLano [the M&T Assistant Vice President in charge of liquidating M&T’s lien on Premier’s cabinets, i.e. storage containers] has informed you that your two “Pyramid” storage cabinets are located at 2140 Sackett Road, Avon, New York. The owner of the property is James Pfuntner and he is represented by David MacKnight (585-454-5650)”
63A:353-16
84. Dr. Cordero’s letter of August 26, 2002, to Att. MacKnight requesting information about “Pyramid” storage containers and the whereabouts of his property
15A:353-18
85. Att. Beyma’s letter of August 28, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that “M&T Bank has not sold your cabinets to Champion or any other party. M&T Bank sold only Pyramid cabinets which were located in Rochester”
94A:353-19
86. Att. MacKnight’s letter of September 19, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that he will soon be receiving Mr. Pfuntner’s summons and complaint
1497 A:353-20
87. Letter of September 23, 2002, of Kenneth Gordon, Esq., Chapter 7 Trustee for the liquidation of moving and storage company Premier Van Lines, Inc., to Dr. Cordero, with copy to U.S. Bankruptcy Judge John C. Ninfo, II, WBNY, and others, enjoining him from contacting his office concerning Dr. Cordero’s search for his property in storage with Premier
1421A:353-25
88. Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 27, 2002, to Trustee Gordon re​questing that he a) apologize for his unjustified and unprofes​sional September 23 letter to him, b) assure him that the lines of communication between them will be opened, and c) send him copies of the letters concerning Premier and his property that the Trustee sent to other parties
2A:353-26
89. Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 27, 2002, to the Judge Ninfo requesting a review of Trustee Gordon’s performance and fitness to continue serving as trustee
7A:353-28
90. Dr. Cordero’s Statement of Facts and Application for a Determination of September 27, 2002, by Judge Ninfo of whether Mr. Gordon, as trustee in bankruptcy with fiduciary duties to all the parties, failed in his duty and is not fit to continue as trustee of Premier Van Lines
8A:353-29
91. Trustee Gordon’s letter of October 1, 2002, to Judge Ninfo and others requesting that the Judge not take any action on Dr. Cordero’s September 27 application for a review of the Trustee’s performance and fitness to serve as Premier’s trustee
19A:353-32
92. Att. Beyma’s letter of October 4, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that “it would appear that James Pfunter (sic) should allow you to remove your goods”
356A:353-34
93. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 7, 2002, to Att. MacKnight stating that despite the latter’s September 19 letter, Dr. Cordero has not yet received from either him or Mr. Pfuntner any information concerning his property stored by Premier Van Lines in Mr. Pfuntner’s warehouse at 2140 Sackett Road in Avon.
34422A:353-35
94. Trustee Gordon’s Answer of October 9, 2002, in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., stating that all Premier’s assets were abandoned and that none is available to pay any claims
31A:353-36
95. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 14, 2002, to Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt submitting his rejoinder to Trustee Gordon’s October 1 letter to Judge Ninfo
37A:353-47
96. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 14, 2002, rejoinder showing that Trustee Gordon resorted in his October 1 letter to defamatory and false statements about Dr. Cordero to detract from his credibility and lend support to the Trustee’s request that Judge Ninfo not take any action on Dr. Cordero’s September 27 application for a review of his performance and fitness to serve as Premier’s trustee
37A:353-48

97. Att. MacKnight’s letter of October 16, 2002, to Dr. Cordero stating that he should anticipate receiving a copy of Mr. Pfuntner’s summons and complaint in the near future
52A:353-57
98. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 17, 2002, to Plaintiff Pfuntner and Att. MacKnight stating that he has not yet received from them the requested information about the Pyramid containers storing his property in Mr. Pfuntner’s warehouse in Avon, NY, and requesting them to provide such information
65423A:353-58
99. Dr. Cordero’s voluntary waiver of service of summons and petition of October 23, 2002, to the Bankruptcy Court for Clarification in Pfuntner
A:353-59

(A:357 et seq. below)

b. From the pleadings in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al. ,
to the pre-trial conference of January 10, 2003
100. Cover sheet of September 26, 2002, in Pfuntner v. Gordon et al, Adversary proceeding no. 02-2230, WBNY, with Plaintiff Pfuntner by his Attorney, David MacKnight, Esq., claiming $20,000 in interpleader
A:18a

101. Warehouser James Pfuntner’s summons of October 3, 2002, in Pfuntner, (received on or around October 20, 2002; see pages A:32 4th paragraph; A:50; and A:52)
A:21

ag. a. “Interpleader Complaint to Determine Rights in Property of the Debtor and in Property in the Debtor’s Possession, to Grant Plaintiff and Compel the Trustee to pay Administrative Expenses or Otherwise Determine the Liability of Those Found to Hold an Interest in the Debtor’s Property or Property in Possession of the Debtor for the Use and Occupancy of the Plaintiff’s Real Property, and to Vacate the Automatic Stay of Actions”
A:22
102. Dr. Cordero’s voluntary waiver of service of summons and petition of October 23, 2002, to the Bankruptcy Court for Clarification in Pfuntner
A:50
103. Dr. Cordero’s answer and counterclaim of November 1, 2002, in Pfuntner
A:56

a.
Statement of Counterclaims
A:60

b.
Relief
A:61

c.
Table of Exhibits
A:62
104. Att. Beyma’s letter of November 6, 2002, to Att. MacKnight accompanying:
A:66
ah. a.
M&T Bank’s answer of November 6, 2002, to the claims against it in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230
A:67

105. Att. MacKnight’s letter of November 11, 2002, to the parties accompanying:
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ai. a.
Plaintiff Warehouser James Pfuntner’s answer of November 8, 2002, to Dr. Cordero’s counterclaim in Pfuntner
A:69
106. Third party summons issued by Bankruptcy Clerk Paul R. Warren, and signed by Deputy Clerk Karen S. Tacy on November 19, 2002, and accompanying Dr. Cordero’s amended answer of November 21, 2002, with cross-claims & 3rd party claims in Pfuntner, no. 02-2230, WBNY
A:69b

107. Dr. Cordero’s Amended Answer of November 21, 2002, in Pfuntner with cross-claims against M&T Bank and Trustee Gordon, and third-party claims against M&T Assistant Vice President DeLano, Warehouser Dworkin, Jefferson Henrietta Associates, and Premier Owner David Palmer
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108. Dr. Cordero’s letter of November 21, 2002, to Bankruptcy Clerk Paul Warren and Case Administrator Karen Tacy certifying service of his amended answer with cross- and third-party claims in Pfuntner
A:95

109. Dr. Cordero’s letters of November 21, 2002, to Att. Beyma with the amended answer containing:

aj. a.
cross-claims against M&T Bank
A:97

ak. b.
third-party claims against M&T Bank Assistant Vice President David DeLano
A:98

110. Dr. Cordero’s letter of November 21, 2002, to M&T Bank Assistant Vice President David DeLano with the amended answer containing third-party claims against him
A:99

111. Att. MacKnight’s letter of December 5, 2002, to Judge Ninfo stating that in light of Dr. Cordero’s latest pleadings, there is a need to obtain information from Trustee Gordon, Dr. Cordero, M&T Bank, and Champion lest the pretrial conference fail to advance matters
A:353-61
112. Trustee Gordon’s letter of December 9, 2002, to Judge Ninfo stating that he does not have documents to provide for the conference; that Premier’s clients and Mr. Pfuntner are in the best position to provide them; and that he “fail[s] to understand why [Mr. Pfuntner] has not already released Dr. Cordero’s property to him”
A:357

113. Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt’s request of December 10, 2002, for a status conference concerning Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al.
A:358

a.
Trustee Schmitt’s proposed Order Setting Matter in for Status Conference/Pretrial Hearing
A:360

114. Att Beyma’s letter of December 16, 2002, to the parties accompanying:
A:100
a.
Att Beyma’s answer of December 16, 2002, for M&T Bank and Mr. DeLano to Dr. Cordero’s claims
A:100-a

115. Bankruptcy Case Administrator Karen Tacy’s notice of pre-trial conference of December 18, 2002, to all parties in Pfuntner
A:362

116. Att. Stilwell’s letter of December 20, 2002, to the Clerk of the U.S. Bankruptcy Court stating that he cannot participate in the pre-trial conference at the date and time indicated, because he already has another judicial commitment for that date and hour
A:297

117. Dr. Cordero’s letter of December 26, 2002, to Judge Ninfo in response to Att. Stilwell’s letter, asking that Att. Stilwell be required to attend and participate in the pre-trial conference and provide all information useful to establish Mr. Palmer’s where-abouts and fully assist the Court in bringing Mr. Palmer before it
A:299

118. Dr. Cordero’s choices of December 26, 2002, in the pre-trial option form
A:363

119. Att. MacKnight’s letter of December 30, 2002, to Dr. Cordero consenting to Dr. Cordero’s appearance by phone at the pre-trial conference and requesting “a copy of the inventory and/or bill of lading given to you when Premier took possession of your goods”
A:364
120. Trustee Schwartz’ reply of January 9, 2003, to Dr. Cordero’s appeal of November 25, 2002, from the perfunctory supervisory decision of Trustee Schmitt on his application for a review of Trustee Gordon’s negligent and reckless performance in the liquidation of Premier and his fitness to serve as trustee
A:364a
c. Proposing dates and measures for the property inspection at Plaintiff Pfuntner’s warehouse in Avon, NY: conducted on May 19, 2003
121. Dr. Cordero’s letter of January 29, 2003, to Judge Ninfo proposing six dates when Dr. Cordero can travel to Rochester to participate in the inspection of his property in storage in Plaintiff Pfuntner’s warehouse in Avon, NY; and indicating measures that must be taken to make the inspection possible
A:365

122. Dr. Cordero’s letter of January 29, 2003, to Att. MacKnight providing him with his proposed travel dates and asking him to inform Judge Ninfo of those that he prefers
A:368

123. Trustee Gordon’s letter of January 31, 2003, to Judge Ninfo informing him that he will not attend the inspection of Dr. Cordero’s property in Rochester
A:369

124. Assistant U.S. Trustee Schmitt’s letter of February 4, 2003, to Dr. Cordero stating that neither she nor her staff will attend the property inspection and that his property is not property of the estate, which will not pay for its removal
A:370

125. Att. Beyma’s letter of February 20, 2003, to Judge Ninfo that M&T Bank has not decided whether to attend the inspection but can decide to do so and attend it on any date
A:371

126. Att. MacKnight’s letter of March 26, 2003, to Dr. Cordero that Att. MacKnight’s assistant called the court and found out that it will not supervise the inspection, which is to be arranged between Mr. Pfuntner and Dr. Cordero; and indicating the best dates when “Mr. Pfuntner is available at your convenience” for the inspection 
A:372

127. Dr. Cordero’s letter of April 2, 2003, to Att. MacKnight stating that “at a hearing on February 12, Judge Ninfo stated that he was waiting to hear from you on a date for the inspection”; pointing out the need to agree on conditions that will ensure that the inspection will achieve its intended purpose; and serving him with a motion to that end
A:374

128. Dr. Cordero’s notice of April 3, 2003, of motion in Bankruptcy Court for measures relating to trip to Rochester and inspection of property
A:376
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130. Judge Ninfo’s letter of April 7, 2003, to Dr. Cordero denying his request to appear by phone to argue his April 3 motion “due to the complexity of the legal issues you have now raised” regarding measures for the trip to Rochester and inspection of property; and stating that “your personal appearance will insure a complete and accurate record that is necessary for the proper administration of justice”
A:386

131. Plaintiff Pfuntner’s notice of April 10, 2003, of motion pursuant to FRBkrP 7056 and 7022 to be discharged from liability
A:387

a.
Plaintiff Pfuntner’s motion of April 10, 2003, to discharge plaintiff from any liability to the persons or entities who own or claim an interest in the four storage containers and the contents thereof presently located in the plaintiff’s Sackett road warehouse and for other relief
A:389

132. Dr. Cordero’s notice of postponement of April 14, 2003, of the motion for measures relating to the trip to Rochester and inspection of property
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133. Dr. Cordero’s brief of April 17, 2003, in Bankruptcy Court in opposition to Pfuntner’s April 10 motion to be discharged from liability, for summary judgment, and other relief
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135. Dr. Cordero’s letter of May 5, 2003, to Judge Ninfo stating that at the pre-trial conference on January 10, 2003, the Judge had stated that within two days of receiving Dr. Cordero’ proposed dates for the inspection trip the Judge would have found the date most convenient to the parties in Rochester and inform Dr. Cordero thereof, and requesting that the Judge contact Mr. Pfuntner to find out what he intends to do and ask that Mr. Pfuntner let Dr. Cordero know in writing
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153. Att. MacKnight’s letter of November 17, 2003, concerning the correction of the mistaken date of his motion to determine matters admitted
A:828
6. Orders and motions concerning Judge Ninfo’s “discrete” “discreet” hearing in Pfuntner on October 16, 2003
154. Judge Ninfo’s Order of July 15, 2003, requiring, among other things, that Dr. Cordero, who lives in New York City, participate in a series of “discrete” “discreet” hearings starting on October 16 in Rochester, NY
A:666

155. Dr. Cordero's notice of August 8, 2003, of motion in Bankruptcy Court
A:672
a.
Dr. Cordero's motion of August 8, 2003, for Judge Ninfo to transfer Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230, WBNY, to the U.S. District Court in Albany, NDNY, and recuse himself
A:674

i.
Table of Contents
A:675

XLI. Statement of facts illustrating a pattern of non-coinciden​tal, intentional, and coordinated acts of this court and other court officers from which a reasonable person can infer their bias and prejudice against Dr. Cordero
A:679

XLII. Recusal is required when to a reasonable person informed of the circumstances the judge’s conduct appears to lack impartiality
A:705

XLIII. To provide for a fair and impartial judicial process, this case should be removed to the District Court for the Northern District of New York, held at Albany
A:708
XLIV. Relief Sought
A:709
156. Judge Ninfo's letter of August 14, 2003, to Dr. Cordero denying his request to appear by phone, as he had on other occasions, to argue his motion for the Judge’s recusal and removal of the case, thus requiring that he travel from NYC to Rochester
A:712

157. Dr. Cordero's renotice of August 18, 2003, of motion for recusal and removal to be heard at the hearing scheduled for October 16, 2003
A:713

158. Dr. Cordero’s notice of October 3, 2003, of objections to hearings and withdrawal of motions except for recusal and removal motion
A:715

a.
Table of Contents
A:715

159. Letter of October 6, 2003, Karl S. Essler, attorney for Mr. David Dworkin and Jefferson Henrietta Associates, to Judge Ninfo opposing Dr. Cordero’s motion for recusal and removal
A:725
160. Dr. Cordero’s reply of October 11, 2003, to Att. Essler’ letter to Judge Ninfo, which is in substance a motion but fails to comply with the formal requirements of a motion of the FRCP
A:727

161. Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and order [of October 16, 2003,] denying recusal and removal motions and objection of Richard Cordero to proceeding with any hearings and a trial on October 16, 2003”; and making reference to his oral decision read into the record at the October 16 hearing in Rochester, NY
A:734

a.
Judge Ninfo’s attachment and exhibit

aq. 1)
Judge Ninfo’s oral decision placed on the record at the hearing in Pfuntner on October 16, 2003, in Rochester, NY
A:736
ar. 2)
Judge Ninfo’s order of July 15, 2003, requiring, among other things, that Dr. Cordero, who lives in New York City, participate in a series of “discrete” “discreet” hearings starting on October 16 in Rochester, NY
A:746
as. 3)
Bankruptcy Clerk Warren’s notice of entry of October 17, 2003, of Judge Ninfo’s October 16 order denying Dr. Cordero’s recusal and removal motion
A:752
162. Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and order [of October 16, 2003,] disposing of causes of action” at the October 16 hearing in Pfuntner v Trustee Gordon et al. in Rochester, NY
A:754
a.
Judge Ninfo’s exhibits
at. 1)
Mr. Pfuntner’s summons of September 26, 2002, by Att. MacKnight
A:758
au. 2)
Mr. Pfuntner’s interpleader complaint of September 20, 2002
A: 759
av. 3)
Bankruptcy Clerk Warren’s notice of entry of October 17, 2003, of Judge Ninfo’s October 16 order disposing of causes of action in Pfuntner at the October 16 hearing in Rochester, NY
A:766
163. Judge Ninfo’s “Scheduling order [of October 23, 2003,] in connection with the remaining claims of the plaintiff, James Pfuntner, and the cross-claims, counterclaims and third-party claims of the third-party plaintiff, Richard Cordero”
A:768
a.
Clerk Warren’s notice of entry of October 23, 2003, of Judge Ninfo’s October 23 order scheduling remaining claims in Pfuntner
A:772

164. Judge Ninfo’s “Decision & order [of October 23, 2003,] finding a waiver of a trial by jury” by Dr. Cordero in Pfuntner
A:774
a.
Clerk Warren’s notice of entry of October 23, 2003, of Judge Ninfo’s October 23 decision finding a waiver of trial by jury by Dr. Cordero
A:782

165. Dr. Cordero’s motion of October 23, 2003, for Judge Ninfo to provide a more definite statement of which of his oral version of October 16, 2003, read into the record, or his written version of the same date is the official version of his “order denying recusal and removal motions and objection of Richard Cordero to proceeding with any hearings and a trial on October 16, 2003”
A:785
166. Judge Ninfo’s order of October 28, 2003, denying in all respects Dr. Cordero’s motion for a more definite statement
A:787
167. Dr. Cordero’s motion of November 3, 2003, in CA2 for leave to file updating supplement of evidence of bias in Judge Ninfo’s denial of Dr. Cordero’s request for a trial by jury
A:801
aw. a.
Table of Contents
A:803
168. Court of Appeal’s order of November 13, 2003, granting Dr. Cordero’s motion for leave to file an updating supplement concerning Judge Ninfo’s bias
A:827
169. Judge Ninfo’s letter of November 19, 2003, to CA2 Clerk of Court Rosemary MacKechnie to submit copies of four of his decisions of October 16 and 23, 2003, after receiving from an unstated source a copy of Dr. Cordero’s Motion Information Sheet indicating that CA2 had granted Dr. Cordero’ motion to file an updating supplement of evidence of the Judge’s bias
A:830
ax. a.
Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and Order of October 16, 2003, Denying Recusal and Removal Motions and Objection of Richard Cordero to Proceeding with any Hearings and a Trial on October 16, 2003”
A:734

ay. b.
Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and Order of October 16, 2003, Disposing of Causes of action” in Pfuntner v Trustee Gordon et al.
A:754
az. c.
Judge Ninfo’s “Scheduling order of October 23, 2003, in Connection with the Remaining Claims of the Plaintiff, James Pfuntner, and the Cross-Claims, Counterclaims and Third-Party Claims of the Third-Party Plaintiff, Richard Cordero”
A:768
d.
Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and Order of October 23, 2003, Finding a Waiver of a Trial by Jury”
A:774
7. Dr. Cordero’s request to Bankruptcy Court for docket documents concerning Trustee Gordon’s liquidation of Premier and its failure to produce them
170. Dr. Cordero’s request of January 4, 2004, to Todd Stickle, Deputy Clerk of Court, WBNY, for copies of certain financial and payment documents referred to in the docket of In re Premier Van Lines, no. 01-20692 (cf. D:193; Add:1038; ToED:215§III))
A:834
171. Clerk Stickle’s letter of January 28, 2004, to Dr. Cordero stating the cost of providing copies of some documents and requesting the docket number of other documents
A:836
172. Dr. Cordero’s letter of April 13, 2004, to Paul Warren, Clerk of Court, WBNY, concerning a series of mistakes made by the clerks in entering on the docket of Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230, some documents filed by Dr. Cordero; and requesting information about the availability of certain documents referred to in the docket of In re Premier, no. 01-20692, WBNY
A:872
173. Clerk Stickle’s letter of April 16, 2004, to Dr. Cordero indicating the correction of mistaken entries in the Pfuntner docket and the non-calendaring of his notice of motion because it will be disposed of by submission [The reference is to “Dr. Cordero’s Motion of March 31, 2004, for a Declaration of the Mode of Computing the Timeliness of an Objection to a Claim of Exemptions and for a Written Statement on and of Local Practice” (D:97), which Judge Ninfo has never disposed of.]
A:1011
174. Dr. Cordero’s letter of April 26, 2004, to Clerk Warren requesting that he enter in the Pfuntner docket letters that he sent to the Court with certificates of service and, thus, for the purpose of their being filed
A:1012
175. Clerk of Court Warren’s letter of May 4, 2004, to Dr. Cordero requesting payment for document search
A:1014
176. Dr. Cordero’s letter of May 16, 2004, to Clerk Warren stating that since the agreement between Deputy Clerk Stickle and Dr. Cordero, of which Clerk Warren was given notice, was only for the availability of certain documents to be determined and no mention was ever made of any search fee, no fee is owed
A:1017
177. Clerk of Court Warren’s letter of May 20, 2004, to Dr. Cordero stating that the search fee is applicable even if no documents are requested and making a general reference to the Bankruptcy Fee Compendium
A:1020
178. Dr. Cordero’s letter of May 22, 2004, to Clerk Warren requesting that if he knows where the Bankruptcy Fee Compendium provides authority to charge a search fee, he should cite and apply it to the facts and reasons which Dr. Cordero set forth in his previous letter against any such fee being owed; and asking that he file this and the previous letters as evidence of how the Court’s administrative personnel operates
A:1021
C. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE SECOND CIRCUIT:
From the appeal to CA2 on April 25, 2003,

to its dismissal for lack of jurisdiction due to the alleged
     non-finality of the appealed orders re Trustee Gordon and Palmer, 

to the denial of the petition for panel rehearing on October 26, 2004
8. Documents in Dr. Cordero’s appeal that the District Court failed to transmit to CA2
g. Appeal from District Court to CA2 and dockets of 
the Bankruptcy Court in Premier Van Lines and Pfuntner
179. Dr. Cordero’s notice of appeal of April 22, 2003, to the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit from District Judge David Larimer’s orders in Cordero v. Trustee Gordon and Cordero v. Palmer, WDNY
A:429

180. Docket of In re Premier Van Lines, Inc., no. 01-20692, WBNY:
a.
as of March 21, 2003
23A:431
b.
as of September 5, 2003 [updated to May 14, 2006]
23A:565
181. Docket of Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., adversary proceeding, no. 02-2230, WBNY:
a.
entries 1-85 from 27sep2-15may3; as of May 19, 2003
37A:445

b.
entries 1-116 from 27sep2-21aug3; as of September 5, 2003
A:548

c.
entries 116-157, from 21aug3-23jun5; as of May 15, 2006
A:564a

d.
entries 156-161, from 24feb5-31dwc9; as of January 29, 2010
A:564f

e.
entries of 31jul3 above 108 to entry after 148 of 19nov3, as of December 9, 2003
A:865
f.
entries 1-157, from 27sep2-23jun5; as of May 15, 2006
A:1551

h. Incomplete transmission of documents from District Court to CA2 
182. District Deputy Clerk Ghysel’s letter of April 28, 2003, mistakenly referring to Dr. Cordero’s two appeals, namely Cordero v. Gordon, no. 03-cv-6021L, and Cordero v. Palmer, no. 03-MBK-6001L, as both being “Cordero vs Palmer”
A:467a
183. Dr. Cordero’s letter of May 5, 2003, to District Clerk Rodney C. Early stating that a statement sent to him by District Clerk Ghysel on April 28 refers in its subject line to his two cases in that Court as “Re: 03-cv-6021L – Cordero vs Palmer, 03-MBK-6001 –Cordero vs Palmer”, which is a mistake since the former, …6021L, is Cordero vs Gordon; and asking that he correct the mistake so that it may not cause problems with his appeal in CA2
61A:469
184. Dr. Cordero’s Redesignation of Items in the Record and Statement of Issues on Appeal of May 5, 2003, based on the Designation for the appeal from WBNY to WDNY, and prepared for the appeal from WDNY to CA2
A:593

1) Cordero v. Trustee Gordon, dkt. no. 03-cv-6021L, WDNY 

185. District Appeals Deputy Clerk Margaret Ghysel’s letter of May 19, 2003, to Circuit Clerk Roseann MacKechnie transmitting the record on appeal and docket sheet of Cordero v. Gordon
48A:456

186. District Clerk Rodney Early’s certificate by Deputy Ghysel of May 19, 2003, of entries and docket sheet as index to the record on appeal in Cordero v. Trustee Gordon
49A:457

187. Docket of Cordero v. Trustee Gordon:

a.
as of May 19, 2003
50A:458
b.
as of May 15, 2006
A:1295
2) Cordero v. Palmer, dkt. no. 03-mbk-6001L, WDNY
188. District Appeals Clerk Margaret Ghysel’s letter of May 19, 2003, to Circuit Clerk Roseann MacKechnie transmitting the record on appeal and docket sheet of Cordero v. Palmer
52A:460

189. District Clerk Rodney Early’s certificate by Deputy Ghysel of May 19, 2003, of docket entries and the docket as index to the record on appeal
53A:461

190. Docket of Cordero v. Palmer, 03mbk6001L, WDNY
a.
as of May 19, 2003
54A:462
b.
The attempt on May 15 and 16, 2006, to update the Cordero v. Palmer docket through the District Court’s website http://www.nywd.uscourts.gov/, was unsuccessful since the docket was not returned by querying or searching for a report on it. (see the “PACER search results” folder>”Cor v Palmer ToEA156”>files in PDF and Word (the latter is likely to have active links to returned cases) and A:467a, 469, 507, 855§1, 889§III, 1329§§5-7). Where is the docket?
i. Documents of Dr. Cordero’s appeal missing in CA2
191. Dockets of In re Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, CA2:
a.
as of May 16, 2003
A:464

b.
case summary, as of July 7, 2003
A:470

c.
case summary, as of October 8, 2003
A:613

d.
Public docket, printed by the clerks at the CA2 document In-take Room on March 15, 2004
A:1001

e.
as of May 15, 2006
A:1285

192. Dr. Cordero’s letter of May 24, 2003, to Circuit Clerk Roseann MacKechnie stating that in neither the docket that he requested from the Bankruptcy Court or received unrequested from the District Court is there any entry for the Redesignation of Items in the Record and Statement of Issues on Appeal that he submitted to both courts on May 5, 2003; and submitting a copy of that Redesignation and Statement
60A:468

a.
Dr. Cordero’s Redesignation of Items in the Record and Statement of Issues on Appeal of May 5, 2003
A:593
193. Dr. Cordero’s letter of July 17, 2003, to CA2 Deputy Clerk Robert Rodriguez submitting copies of the two final orders of March 27, 2003, issued by District Judge Larimer that are missing from the red folder of the Court of Appeals record and that constitute the basis of his appeal in Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023.
A:507
194. Letter of Karl S. Essler, attorney for Mr. David Dworkin and Jefferson Henrietta Associates, of October 6, 2003, to CA2 Deputy Clerk Rodriguez, Supervisor of the Pro Se Unit at the Court of Appeals, requesting that his name be listed on the docket of Premier Van et al.
A:612

9. Pleadings in Premier Van et al., CA2
195. Title page of Dr. Cordero’s opening brief of July 9, 2003
A:1301
a.
Tables of Contents of:

ba. 
Part 1. Brief
A:1304

II.
Table of Headings of the Brief
A:1304

Part 2. Special Appendix (SPA)
A:1313

Part 3. Appendix
A:1316

b. 
Contents of:

Part 1.
Text of the Brief
1=A:1317
bb. Part 2.
A.
Exhibits of the Special Appendix
SpA-1=A:1379
bc. 
B.
Table of Contents of Reproduced Text of Authorities

SpA-64i=A:1445
20) Rules of Procedure
A:1448

21) Statutes
A:1467

22) Trustee Manual
A:1471

bd. Part 3.
Appendix [in a separate volume and consisting of pages A-1-429, corresponding substantially to…]
A:1-429
196. Trustee Gordon’s answer of August 7, 2003
A:1491
197. Title page of Dr. Cordero’s reply of August 25, 2004
A:1511
a.
Table of Contents
A:1513
10. Motions and oral argument in Premier Van et al., CA2

198. Dr. Cordero’s motion of November 3, 2003, to CA2 for leave to file an updating supplement of evidence of bias in Judge Ninfo’s denial of Dr. Cordero’s request for a trial by jury
A:801
199. CA2’s notice, dated October 22, 2003, but received on November 4, 2003, setting December 11 as the date for oral argument and stating the time allotted in the case identified as “Short Title: In Re: Premier Van v. Palmer    Docket Number: 03-5023”
A:825
200. CA2’s order of November 13, 2003, granting Dr. Cordero’s motion for leave to file the updating supplement concerning Judge Ninfo’s bias in denying trial by jury
A:827
201. Judge Ninfo’s letter of November 19, 2003, to CA2 Clerk of Court Rosemary MacKechnie volunteering copies of four of his decisions of October 16 and 23, 2003, after receiving from an unstated source a copy of the Motion Information Sheet indicating that CA2 had granted Dr. Cordero’ motion to file an updating supplement of evidence of the Judge’s bias
A:830
a.
Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and order [of October 16, 2003,] Denying Recusal and Removal Motions and Objection of Richard Cordero to Proceeding with any Hearings and a Trial on October 16, 2003”
A:734

b.
Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and Order [of October 16, 2003,] Disposing of Causes of action” in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al.
A:754
c.
Judge Ninfo’s “Scheduling order [of October 23, 2003,] in Connection with the Remaining Claims of the Plaintiff, James Pfuntner, and the Cross-Claims, Counterclaims and Third-Party Claims of the Third-Party Plaintiff, Richard Cordero”
A:768
d
Judge Ninfo’s “Decision and Order [of October 23, 2003,] Finding a Waiver of a Trial by Jury”
A:774
202. Trustee Gordon’s request of November 5, 2003, to the Court of Appeals for leave to waive oral argument; otherwise, to appear by video argument
A:831
be. a.
Trustee Gordon’s video argument request of November 5, 2003
A:832

203. Trustee Gordon’s confirmation of November 20, 2003, to CA2 Clerk Anna Vargas of the Court’s grant of his request for a waive of oral argument
A:833
204. Dr. Cordero’s outline of his oral argument delivered both orally and on paper to the members of the CA2 panel on December 11, 2003
A:837
a) a.
Table of Main Papers in In re Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, CA2, with the numbers of the pages where they appear in Dr. Cordero’s Appendix (A:#) to his opening brief of July 9, 2003
A:842
205. Dr. Cordero’s motion of December 28, 2003, for leave to brief the issue raised at oral argument by the CA2 panel of CA2’s jurisdiction to decide the case at bar, namely, In re Premier Van et al, no. 03-5023
A:844
b) a.
Table of Contents
A:846

c) b.
Docket of Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230, WBNY, as of December 9, 2003
A:865
206. CA2’ s order of January 26, 2004, granting the motion for leave to brief the issue of its jurisdiction to decide Premier Van et al. that it raised at oral argument
A:875
207. CA2’s summary order of January 26, 2004, dismissing Dr. Cordero’s appeal for lack of jurisdiction
A:876
208. Dr. Cordero’s petition to CA2 for a writ of mandamus to disqualify Judge Ninfo for bias toward the locals and disregard for the law, and to transfer Pfuntner to NDNY; and its denial for alleged non-fulfillment of “the extraordinary requirements” to issue a writ of mandamus
11. 
209. Dr. Cordero’s petition of September 12, 2003, for a writ of mandamus In re Richard Cordero, dkt. no. 03-3088, CA2,
A:615

XLV. This Court can and should issue this writ
A:616

XLVI. Issues presented
A:617
Table of Contents
A:618
XLVII. Statement of facts
A:619

XLVIII. Legal standards for determining that the writ should issue
A:642

XLIX. Relief sought
A:644
L. Table of exhibits
A:645
210. Court of Appeals’ docketing letter of September 16, 2003, concerning the mandamus petition, docket no. 03-3088
A:647

211. General docket of In re Richard Cordero, no. 03-3088:
a.
as of September 18, 2003
A:649

b.
as of October 29, 2003
A:665a

c.
as of May 15, 2006
A:665g
212. Dr. Cordero’s return of September 21, 2003, to CA2 of acknowledgment form with request for correction of mandamus docket caption and list of respondents to be served
A:652

a.
Dr. Cordero’s return of September 21, 2003, to CA2 of corrected pages of mandamus docket
A:655

b.
Dr. Cordero’s return of September 21, 2003, to CA2 of acknowledgment letter
A:657

213. Dr. Cordero’s motion of September 30, 2003, for CA2 to take expedited action before October 10, 2003, on his mandamus petition
A:658

214. CA2’s letter of October 2, 2003, to Dr. Cordero stating the setting on the substantive calendar of his mandamus petition and motion to expedite its determination
A:663

215. CA2’s order of October 8, 2003, denying Dr. Cordero’s petition for a writ of mandamus, by a CA2 panel composed of Chief Judge John M. Walker, Jr., Judge Wilfred Feinberg, and Judge Richard J. Cardamone
A:664
216. Dr. Cordero’s petition for rehearing of Premier Van et al. due to the appealed orders’ necessary finality; motions for CA2 Chief Judge Walker to recuse himself from its consid​eration due to his mis​handling of a judicial misconduct complaint and toleration of a pattern of wrongdoing by Judge Ninfo and CA clerks; and the Chief Judge’s belated and inconsequential recusal on October 13, 2004
12. 
217. Dr. Cordero’s motion of February 7, 2004, for CA2 to extend time to file a petition for rehearing of his dismissed appeal Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, CA2, and to stay the mandate
A:879
218. CA2’s grant of February 23, 2004, of Dr. Cordero’s motion to extend time to file the rehearing petition
A:881
219. Dr. Cordero’s motion of March 10, 2004, for CA2 to grant leave to attach to the petition for a panel rehearing and hearing en banc some entries of his Appendix, as updated after its submission with Dr. Cordero’s opening brief in Premier Van et al.
A:883
220. Dr. Cordero’s petition of March 10, 2004, for CA2 panel rehearing and hearing en banc of the dismissal of his appeal Premier Van et al., 03-5023
A:885
bf. a.
Table of Contents
A:900

bg. b.
Table of Cases
A:900

bh. c.
Table of Statutes
A:901

bi. d.
Table of Exhibits
A:901

221. Dr. Cordero’s motion of March 22, 2004, for CA2 Chief Judge John M. Walker, Jr., to recuse himself from In re Premier Van et al. and from considering the pending petition for panel rehearing and hearing en banc
A:903
d) a.
Table of Contents
A:905
222. CA2’s grant of March 23, 2004, of the March 10 motion for leave to attach some entries of the Appendix to the petition for a panel rehearing and hearing en banc
A:915
223. Dr. Cordero’s motion of April 18, 2004, for leave to update the March 22 motion for Chief Judge Walker to recuse himself from In re Premier Van et al., with recent evidence of a tolerated pattern of disregard for law and rules further calling into question the Chief Judge’s objectivity and impartiality to judge similar conduct on appeal
A:917
V. a.
Table of Contents
A:919

W. b.
Table of Exhibits
A:938
4)
Complaint Form accompanying the judicial misconduct complaint of March 19, 2004, indicating its statutory basis as 28 U.S.C. §372(c), and removed as required by CA2 Deputy Clerk Patricia Chin Allen (cf. entry 8.b, below)
A:940
5)
Letter of Deputy Clerk Allen of March 24, 2004, to Dr. Cordero refusing for improper form to file his complaint against Chief Judge Walker
A:943
6)
Letter of CA2 Clerk of Court Roseann B. MacKechnie of March 29, 2004, to Dr. Cordero returning his attachments to each of the five copies of his the complaint against Chief Judge Walker because they duplicate pages in the one volume of Exhibits
A:944
7)
Letter of Clerk MacKechnie by Deputy Allen of March 30, 2004, to Dr. Cordero stating that his complaint has been filed under the docket no. 04-8510
A:945
8)
Judicial misconduct complaint of March 19, 2004, against CA2 Chief Judge Walker
(a)
Statement of Facts
A:946
(b)
Complaint Form indicating the statutory basis of the misconduct complaint as 28 U.S.C. §351 (cf. entry 4, above)
A:951
(c)
Table of Documents
A:954
(11) 
Dr. Cordero’s Statement of Facts with its page numbers bearing the format E-# to indicate that it is an exhibit in support of his complaint under 28 U.S.C. §372(c)(1) submitted on August 11, 2003, to the CA2 Clerk against Judge Ninfo and other court officers at WBNY and WDNY
E-1 [E file]
(12)
Dr. Cordero’s two-page letter of August 11, 2003, to CA2 Clerk of Court MacKechnie setting forth a judicial misconduct complaint against Bankruptcy Judge John C. Ninfo, II, WBNY and other court officers at the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, WBNY, and the U.S. District Court, WDNY
E-55 & A:964 

(13)
Judge Ninfo’s Order of July 15, 2003, in Pfuntner, requiring, among other things, that Dr. Cordero, who lives in New York City, participate in a series of “discrete” “discreet” hearings in Rochester, NY, in Pfuntner
E-57 & A:666 

(d)
1-25 pages of documents created since the original complaint against Judge Ninfo of August 11, 2003:
(1)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of February 2, 2004, to Chief Judge Walker inquiring about the status of his complaint of August 11, 2003, against Judge Ninfo and providing updating evidence of the latter’s bias
A:966
(2)
Deputy Clerk Allen’s letter of September 2, 2003, to Dr. Cordero acknowledging receipt of his judicial complaint against Judge Ninfo and of docketing it as no. 03-8547
A:968
(3)
Precedent for updating bias evidence: CA2’s order of November 13, 2003, granting Dr. Cordero leave to file an updating supplement in Premier Van et al. of evidence of bias in Judge Ninfo’s denial of Dr. Cordero’s request for a trial by jury in Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 02-2230, WBNY
A:969
(4)
Chief Judge Walker’s letter of February 4, 2004, by Deputy Clerk Allen stating: “I am returning your [February 2] documents to you. A decision has not been made in the above-reference matter. You will be notified by letter when a decision has been made”
A:970
(5)
Dr. Cordero’s statement of facts in support of his complaint against Judge Ninfo and other court officers at the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, WBNY, and the U.S. District Court, WDNY, of August 11, 2003, as reformatted and resubmitted on August 27, 2003, to meet Clerk Allen’s filing requirements
A:971
(6)
Clerk MacKechnie’s letter of August 25, 2003, by Deputy Clerk Allen to Dr. Cordero acknowledging receipt of his August 11 judicial complaint against Judge Ninfo but requiring resubmission with the complaint form indicating its statutory basis as 28 U.S.C. §351 and a shorter statement of facts
A:976
(7)
Notice of Chapter 13 voluntary bankruptcy petition, docket no. 04-20280, WBNY, filed by David and Mary Ann DeLano, on January 27, 2004, with the date for the meeting of their creditors and other deadlines
A:977
(8)
Dr. Cordero’s objections of March 3, 2004, to confirmation of the plan of debt repayment filed by the DeLano Debtors
A:979
(9)
Dr. Cordero’s Outline of his Oral Argument delivered on December 11, 2003, orally and in paper copy to the panel members of the Court of Appeals
A:984
(i)
Table of Main Papers in Dr. Cordero’s appeal in In re Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, CA2, with numbers of pages of the Appendix (A:#) where they appear
A:989
(10)
Dr. Cordero’s sample of letters of February 11 and 13, 2004, to CA2 Judge Dennis Jacobs and to the other members of the Judicial Council of the Second Circuit describing how with disregard for law and rules Chief Judge Walker has handled his misconduct complaint against Judge Ninfo of August 11, 2003, and returned Dr. Cordero’s February 2 inquiring and updating letter addressed to the Chief
A:990
(i)
List of names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the Justice and judges members of Judicial Council to whom Dr. Cordero sent February 11 and 13his letter
A:991
a. c.
Title page of the separate volume of documents, titled “Evidentiary Documents”, accompanying Dr. Cordero’s complaint of March 19, 2004, against Chief Judge Walker
A:992
b. d.
Reformatted title page of the volume of documents, containing the word “Exhibits”, instead of “Evidentiary Documents”, as required by Clerk Allen
A:993
224. CA2’s order of May 4, 2004, signed by Motions Staff Attorney Arthur Heller, denying the motion for Chief Judge Walker to recuse himself from considering Dr. Cordero’s petition for panel rehearing and hearing en banc of the dismissal of his appeal In re Premier Van et al., 03-5023, CA2
A:1041
225. Amended Order of May 10, 2004, signed by Motions Staff Attorney Arthur Heller, denying the motion for Chief Judge Walker to recuse himself from considering Dr. Cordero’s petition for panel rehearing and hearing en banc
A:1042
226. Dr. Cordero’s motion of May 15, 2004, for declaratory judgment that the legal grounds for updating opening and reply appeal briefs and expanding upon their issues also apply to similar papers under 28 U.S.C. Chapter 16 concerning judicial misconduct complaints
A:1043
bj. a.
Table of Contents
A:1046

227. Dr. Cordero’s motion of May 31, 2004, for Chief Judge Walker, either to state his arguments for denying the motions that he disqualify himself from considering the pending petition for panel rehearing and hearing en banc and from having anything else to do with In re Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, or disqualify himself and failing that for this Court to disqualify the Chief Judge therefrom
A:1061
a.
Table of Contents
A:1063

b.
Table of Exhibits
A:1080
9)
Excerpt from the Request of May 31, 2004, that the FBI open an investi​gation into the link between the pattern of non-coinci​dental, intentional, and coordinated disregard for the law, rules, and facts in the U.S. Bankruptcy and District Courts for the Western District of New York and the money generated by the concentration in the hands of individual trustees of thousands of open cases, including cases patently undeserving of relief under the Bankruptcy Code
A:1083
(a)
Debt repayment plan of January 26, 2004, of the DeLanos, debtors in bankruptcy under 11 U.S.C. Chapter 13, in In re DeLano, 04-20280, WBNY
A:1093

(b)
DeLanos’ voluntary petition in bankruptcy under 11 U.S.C. Chapter 13, with Schedules A-J and Statement of Financial Affairs
A:1095
228. CA2’s order of August 2, 2004, denying Dr. Cordero’s May 15 motion for declaratory judgment that the legal grounds for updating opening and reply appeal briefs and expanding upon their issues also apply to similar papers under 28 U.S.C. Chapter 16 containing the judicial misconduct provisions
A:1127
229. CA2’s order of August 2, 2004, denying Dr. Cordero’s May 31 motion for Chief Judge Walker either to state his arguments for denying the March 22 and April 18 motions that he disqualify himself from considering the pending petition for panel rehearing and hearing en banc and from having anything else to do with this case or disqualify himself and failing that for this Court to disqualify the Chief Judge therefrom
A:1128
230. CA2’s statement of October 13, 2004, that Chief Judge Walker recused himself from further consideration of Premier Van et al., contained in the CA2’s order denying Dr. Cordero’s motion to quash Judge Ninfo’s August 30 order
A:1129
13. Dr. Cordero’s motion to quash Judge Ninfo’s order in DeLano requiring Dr. Cordero to take discovery of issues in Pfuntner on appeal in CA2 and try them piecemeal in DeLano so as to enable the Judge to disallow and dismiss wholesale Dr. Cordero’s claims in both cases; and denial in CA2
231. Dr. Cordero’s motion of September 9, 2004, to quash the order of Bankruptcy Judge Ninfo of August 30, 2004, to sever a claim from the case on appeal In re Premier Van et al., in the Court of Appeals for the purpose of trying it in In re DeLano in Bankruptcy Court, WBNY
A:1130
a.
Table of Contents
A:1133
b. Table of Exhibits
A:1148
22)
Judge Ninfo’s Interlocutory Order of August 30, 2004, requiring Dr. Cordero to take discovery of his claim against Debtor David DeLano arising from the Pfuntner v. Trustee Gordon et al., docket no. 02-2230, WBNY, on appeal in the Court of Appeals sub nom. In re Premier et al., docket no. 03-5023, CA2, to try it in In re DeLano, docket no. 04-20280, WBNY
A:1051
23)
Dr. Cordero’s letter of August 31, 2004, to Bradley E. Tyler, Esq., U.S. Attorney in Charge of the U.S. Attorney’s Office in Rochester, NY, sending back to him the files that his Assistant U.S. Attorney Richard Resnik had returned to Dr. Cordero
A:1159
(a)
Table of files already sent to U.S. Att. Tyler and updates accompanying Dr. Cordero’s August 31 letter to him
A:1160
(b)
Letter of Richard Resnik, Esq., Assistant U.S. Attorney, of August 24, 2004, to Dr. Cordero stating that the U.S. Attorney’s Office in Rochester will not investigate Dr. Cordero’s “allegations of bankruptcy fraud and judicial misconduct” and returning to him all the files
A:1161
232. Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 27, 2004, to CA2 Clerk of Court MacKechnie and to the attention of Motions Staff Attorney Arthur Heller, to urge the Court to either stay Judge Ninfo’s Order of August 30 or to treat on an emergency basis Dr. Cordero’s motion of September 9 to quash it
A:1181
233. Dr. Cordero’s letter of September 29, 2004, to the DeLanos’ attorney, Christopher Werner, Esq., requesting production of documents pursuant to Judge Ninfo’s August 30 order, and without prejudice to Dr. Cordero’s September 9 motion in CA2 to quash it
A:1183
234. Trustee Reiber’s letter of October 1, 2004, to CA2 Heller stating that he is not aware of any notice of appeal filed in CA2 in connection with In re DeLano, 04-20280, WBNY, and that he believes that Judge Ninfo’s bench order, spoken at the DeLano hearing on August 23, 2004, is not appealable because it is not a final order
A:1193
235. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 12, 2004, to Trustee Reiber setting out the factual and legal reasons why Judge Ninfo’s order does not and cannot prevent the Trustee from conducting an examination of the DeLanos by their creditors under 11 U.S.C. §341
A:1194
236. CA2’s order of October 13, 2004, denying Dr. Cordero’s motion to quash the August 30 order of Bankruptcy Judge Ninfo; and statement that Chief Judge Walker recused himself from further consideration of Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, CA2
A:1197
237. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 20, 2004, to Trustee Reiber showing that the Trustee’s letter of October 13 belies his own statement therein that he did not have Judge Ninfo’s August 30 written order, but only the August 23 spoken bench order, and once more requesting that he hold the §341 examination of the DeLanos
A:1199
a.
WBNY Clerk Warren’s notice of August 30, 2004, of entry certifying that a copy of Judge Ninfo’s August 30 order was sent to all parties to DeLano, no. 04-20280, of whom Trustee Reiber is one
A:1203
b.
Trustee Reiber’s letter of October 13, 2004, to Dr. Cordero stating that he only had Judge Ninfo’s bench order, not the August 30 written version and that the latter is part of the DeLano case and has nothing to do with the appeal Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023, CA2
A:1204
238. Dr. Cordero’s letter of October 21, 2004, to Trustee Schmitt requesting that she:

239. a. disqualify Trustee Reiber from DeLano and investigate him and his attorney, James Weidman, Esq.; 
240. b. appoint a trustee unrelated to the parties and the Bankruptcy Court as well as willing and able to investigate this case zealously and efficiently; 
241. c. otherwise, order Trustee Reiber to hold a §341 examination of the DeLanos on November 3 and 4 as requested.
A:1205
242. Trustee Reiber’s fax of October 27, 2004, to Dr. Cordero requesting a copy of the order by which Chief Judge Walker recused himself from Premier Van et al.
A:1206

243. Dr. Cordero’s fax of October 28, 2004, to Trustee Reiber providing Trustee Reiber the requested copy of CA2 Chief Judge Walker’s recusal from Premier and proposing dates for the Trustee to hold the examination of the DeLanos in an adjourned meeting of creditors under 11 U.S.C. §§341 and 343
A:1207

a.
CA2’s statement of October 13, 2004, that Chief Judge Walker recused himself from further consideration of Premier Van et al., contained in the CA2’s order denying Dr. Cordero’s motion to quash Judge Ninfo’s August 30 order
A:1208
14. CA2 denial of the rehearing petition on 
October 26, 2004, and of the motion to stay 
the mandate on November 8, 2004
244. CA2’s order of October 26, 2004, denying “upon consideration by the panel that decided the appeal” In re Premier Van et al. [A:876], Dr. Cordero’s petition for panel rehearing and hearing en banc
A:1231

245. Dr. Cordero’s motion of November 2, 2004, for CA2 to stay the mandate following the CA2’s denial of his motion for panel rehearing in Premier Van et al. and pending the filing of a petition for a writ of certiorari in the Supreme Court
A:1232

a.
Table of Exhibits
A:1239

1)
Dr. Cordero’s motion of August 14, 2004, in the Bankruptcy Court, WBNY, for docketing and issue of the proposed order, removal, referral, examination, and other relief In re DeLano, no. 04-20280,
A:1241
b.
Table of Contents
A:1241
1)
Dr. Cordero’s proposed order of August 14, 2004, for issue by Judge Ninfo in In re DeLano, no. 04-20280, WBNY
A:1260
2)
Phone bill showing faxes sent by Dr. Cordero to Judge Ninfo’s fax no. (585)613-4299
A:1262
246. Dr. Cordero’s motion of November 3, 2004, for CA2 to state the names of the panel members that reviewed his motion for panel rehearing and hearing en banc (returned unfiled)
A:1263

247. Dr. Cordero’s motion of November 8, 2004, for CA2 to report In re Premier Van et al., no. 03-5023,  to the U.S. Attorney General under 18 U.S.C. §3057(a) for investigation of the evidence of a bankruptcy fraud scheme (returned unfiled)
A:1265

bk. a.
Table of Contents
A:1266
248. CA2’s order of November 8, 2004, denying Dr. Cordero’s motion to stay the mandate
A:1283

249. CA2’s summary order of November 8, 2004, issuing the mandate after denial of Dr. Cordero’s rehearing petition
A:1284
D. SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES: 
Petition for a writ of certiorari to CA2 on grounds of intentional and coordinated denial of due process as part of a judicial misconduct and bankruptcy fraud scheme; denied on March 28, 2005

250. Title page of Dr. Cordero’s petition, no. 04-8371, of January 20, 2005, to the U.S. Supreme Court for a writ of certiorari to CA2
A:1601
251. a.
Prefatory material
i. Questions presented
A:1602

ii. List of Parties
A:1603

iii. Summary of Contents
A:1603
iv. Index of Appendices
A:1604
v. Table of Exhibits in the Appendix submitted to CA2
A:1611
vi. Table of Authorities Cited
A:1629

vii. Table of Headings of the Petition
A:1633
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Substantive material
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SCt.1=A:1635

LII. Jurisdiction
A:1635

LIII. Constitutional and Statutory Provisions Involved
A:1636

LIV. Statement of the Case
A:1637

LV. Reasons for Granting The Writ
A:1649

LVI. Conclusion
A:1674

c.
Supporting material
i.
Title page of Appendices
A:1675

ii.
Appendices:
SCtA.1=A:1677
  I.
Opinions, orders, findings of fact, and conclusions of law
A:1677
 II.
Other relevant opinions, orders, findings of fact, and conclusions of law
A:1689
III.
Other material indispensable to understand the petition
A:1765
A.
Dr. Cordero’s opening brief of July 9, 2003, in In re Premier Van et al, no. 03-5023, CA2
A:1765
B.
Judicial Misconduct Complaints under 28 U.S.C. §351 et seq.
A:1927
C.
Supreme Court and Judicial Conference statis​tics
A:1963
D.
In re DeLano, a bankruptcy petition that provides in​sight into a judicial misconduct and bank​ruptcy fraud scheme
A:1967
i)
WBNY Bankruptcy Court Notice of February 3, 2004, of meeting of creditors
A:2051
 ii)
Debt repayment plan of January 26, 2004
A:2055

iii)
Bankruptcy petition, no. 04-20280, WBNY, of January 27, 2004, with Sched​ules A-J
A:2057
(a)
Statement of Financial Affairs
A:2077

(b)
Verification of Creditor Matrix
A:2085
(c)
List of Creditors
A:2086
E.
Request to the U.S. Attorneys in Buffalo and Roch​ester Offices for an investigation of bankruptcy fraud
A:2127
F.
Request for a judicial report under 18 U.S.C. §3057(a) to the U.S. Attorney General of evidence of bankruptcy fraud
A:2187
252. Dr. Cordero’s letter of January 21, 2005, to Paul D. Clement, Esq., Acting Solicitor General of the United States, to serve on him a copy of Dr. Cordero’s petition and request that he support it, and to request that he bring the matter of the judicial misconduct in sup​port of a bankruptcy fraud scheme and its handling by U.S. Attor​ney Michael Battle, WDNY, to the attention of the General Attor​ney
A:2215
253. Supreme Court notice of January 27, 2005, to Dr. Cordero of the filing of Cordero v. Trustee Gordon et al., on January 21, 2005, and docketed as no. 04-8371
A:2216
bl. a.
Supreme Court form for petitioner to notify opposing counsel of the docketing of the petition for a writ of certiorari
A:2217
bm. b.
Supreme Court form for respondent to notify its waiver of the right to file a response to the petition for a writ of certiorari
A:2218
254. Dr. Cordero’s notice of February 2, 2005, to the parties of the Supreme Court docketing of his petition for writ of certiorari and of their option to waive their right to file a response
A:2219
255. Dr. Cordero’s letter of February 6, 2005, to U.S. Acting Solicitor General Clement to inform him of the unpreparedness and lack of knowledge of Larry Walquast, Esq., trial attorney at the Executive Office of the United States Trustees, who called at Mr. Clement’s instigation, to tell Dr. Cordero that the Department of Justice does not investigate “judicial fraud” and to refer him to the Administrative Office of the United States Courts, which does so, according to Mr. Walquast
A:2221
201. Letter of February 16, 2005, of Lawrence A. Friedman, Director of the Executive Office of the United States Trustees (EOUST), to Dr. Cordero:
202. a.
stating in response to his January 21 correspondence to the Acting Solicitor General that EOUST neither found bankruptcy fraud based on the evidence that Dr. Cordero presented nor has jurisdiction over the conduct of judges and 
459. b.
advising Dr. Cordero that if he believes to be in possession of evidence of judicial misconduct, he may contact the Administrative Office of the United States Courts or the FBI
A:2223

460. Respondent Pfuntner’s waiver, by Louis A. Ryen, of February 18, 2005, of his right to file a response in the U.S. Supreme Court to Dr. Cordero’s petition for a writ of certiorari in Cordero v. Trustee Gordon et al.
A:2224
256. Acting Solicitor General Clement’s waiver of February 24, 2005, of right to file a response to Cordero v. Trustee Gordon et al.
A:2226
203. Supreme Court order of March 28, 2005, denying Dr. Cordero’s petition for writ of certiorari in Cordero v. Trustee Gordon et al.
A:222
257. Docket of Cordero v. Trustee Gordon et al., no. 04-8371, U.S. Supreme Court, as of March 30, 2005
A:2229
258. U.S. 
E. BANKRUPTCY COURT, WBNY 
259. Dr Cordero’s motion of June 25, 2009, in WBNY for transfer, recusal of Bankruptcy Judge Ninfo & discovery
A:2301
204. Dr Cordero’s motion of December 23, 2009, in WBNY to transfer and recuse Judge Ninfo for bias, arbitrariness, and abuse of power
A:2305
205. Bankruptcy Clerk’s notice of deficiency of December 29, 2009, stating that Dr. Cordero’s motion of December 23 is incomplete for lack of a hearing date, time and location, and that it will not be considered until the deficiencies are corrected
A:2317

206. 
A:2319-500. reserved
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� As items, i.e. documents, were produced, they were added physically to this volume after the last one here. Consequently, they began with the page number that followed the last one. However, their placement on this Table resulted from the application of first a thematic, then a chronological criterion. Thus, depending on a document’s subject matter, it was grouped with similar ones under one or more number-subheadings or a new subheading was created. Within each group, the document was placed chronologically. Hence, page numbers in a subheading group are not necessarily consecutive.


� See footnote 2 on page 1 above.	
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